FORM B ( BUILDING 

Massachusetts Historical Commission

Massachusetts Archives Building

220 Morrissey Boulevard

Boston, Massachusetts 02125 

Photograph

	[image: image1.jpg]



View from SW


Locus Map (north at top)
	[image: image2.jpg]





	Recorded by:   Kathryn Grover & Neil Larson


	Organization:  Town of Georgetown


	Date:  October 2012



Assessor’s Number       USGS Quad      Area(s)     Form Number
	6C-164
	
	Georgetown
	
	C
	
	GEO.133


	Town/City:  
Georgetown

	Place: (neighborhood or village):



Town Center




	Address: 
17 Clark Street

	Historic Name:  Osgood – Hurd House


	Uses:
Present: 
double residence

	Original: 
single residence

	Date of Construction:  ca. 1880

	Source:  
historic maps

	Style/Form:   
Classical Revival

	Architect/Builder:  
unknown

	Exterior Material:

	Foundation:  
brick

	Wall/Trim:  
vinyl clapboards

	Roof:  
asphalt shingles

	Outbuildings/Secondary Structures:  


none

	Major Alterations (with dates):  


Two-story wing added to southerly end

Vinyl siding added


Window sash replaced



	Condition:  
good

	Moved:  no  FORMCHECKBOX 
 
yes  FORMCHECKBOX 
     Date:


	Acreage: .11 acre

	Setting:   This house is sited on the north side of Clark Street between School and Middle Streets on a lot with mature trees. The area is largely residential.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Recommended for listing in the National Register of Historic Places.  


If checked, you must attach a completed National Register Criteria Statement form.
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION   

The Osgood – Hurd House, built ca. 1880, is a two-story wood frame double dwelling with a gable roof located on the easterly side of Clark Street south of School Street.  The four-bay front façade contains two groups of windows, two to a story, that indicates the internal central division of the two interior living units.  Entrances are located on the end walls.  The northerly wall contains a central entrance and windows on the rear side of it; the southerly end wall is concealed by two-story addition with an entrance on the front façade. The narrow, two-family plan and the termination of the roof edges at the walls suggests that this is an early 19th-century dwelling moved to this site ca. 1880 from an unknown location. 

The house is sited close to the street on the southerly side of a sloping site.  The basement is exposed at grade on the rear side of the house and opens on a large yard.  The front area of the property has been paved for parking.
The Osgood – Hurd House is an example of a two-story double-family dwelling that appears to date from the early 19th century.  This being the case, it would have been moved to its present location ca. 1880.  The building is a contributing component of the village district.     
HISTORICAL NARRATIVE    
The house at 17 Clark Street appears to have been built between 1872 and 1884 by Georgetown merchant tailor Stephen Osgood.  The 1872 map of Georgetown village shows that Clark Street had not been cut through north from Middle (then Bacon) to School Street and that Stephen Osgood owned a large lot on the southerly side of School Street on which a carriage shop was located.  This lot also contained the site where 17 Clark Street later was built.  By the time the next map was published in 1884, Clark Street had been extended to School Street, taking the western side of Osgood’s lot, leaving the carriage shop on the corner of Clark and School, and lot containing the house at 17 Clark Street had been created.  Evidently, Osgood built the double house for rental; he also owned the lot on the westerly side of the Clark Street extension north of the Congregational Church, which contained dwellings named for P. Huse and P. Foley in 1872.  (One of those houses appears still to remain at 24 School Street.)  In November 1890 Osgood, a substantial owner of Georgetown property, sold the lot and its buildings to shoe manufacturer Horace E. Harriman.
 Like Osgood, Harriman appears to have rented the property, for he lived most of his life on Elm Street in the southern part of the village.
Not until 1916 can a history of occupancy be established for 17 Clark Street. In November that year Harriman sold the property to Thomas Hurd, who was born in Berwick, Maine, in 1878.
 His father George was a shoe factory operative and by 1880 had moved his family to Lynn. By 1900 Thomas Hurd was working as a farm laborer and boarding in a Haverhill household, and before 1918 he married Cassandra Tibbits of Farmington, New Hampshire, just over the border from Hurd’s native Berwick.  Hurd’s World War I draft registration card establishes that he was living at 17 Clark by 1918, and he was working then at the ship fitter Atlantic Corporation in Portsmouth, New Hampshire.
The 1920 census shows Hurd as a machinist at the mammoth shoe machine parts manufacturer United Shoe Machinery Company and living at 15 Clark Street (clearly a double house) with his wife and seven children—Marjorie, Eleanor, Forest, Florence, Georgiana, Thomas Jr., and Edna, all between the ages of three and twelve. Georgetown antiques dealer Wilbur B. Spaulding, by then divorced, rented part of the house from Hurd and continued to do so until at least 1940.  By 1930 Cassandra Hurd and her daughter Marjorie were both bookkeepers at an antique shop, no doubt Spaulding’s.
 In 1940 the Hurd household included Thomas, then sixty-one and still working for United Shoe Machinery Company, his wife, their nineteen-year-old son Alfred, a shoe shop laster, and Spaulding, as well as two grandchildren, Forest and Eleanor Hurd. The Hurds rented 15 Clark to Works Progress Administration laborer Philip J. Driscoll and his wife and infant daughter.

In 1916 Hurd put the 17 Clark property into trust to provide a home or income for a home elsewhere for his minor children until the youngest of them came of age. The Hurds’ youngest child, Edna, had not been born at the time; born the next year, she turned twenty-one in 1938. In 1959 Hurd and his son Thomas Jr. dissolved the trust. Cassandra Tibbitts Hurd died in 1960 at the age of eighty; Thomas Hurd died seven years later. In 1968 the surviving Hurd children deeded the property to the eldest of them, Marjorie E. Hurd Pitkin, who then lived in North Carolina. The property then changed hands several time until April 2002, when current owners Deborah L. and Frank J. Scearbo Jr. acquired it.
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17 Clark Street: views from SE (top) and NW (bottom)
[image: image4.jpg]




National Register of Historic Places Criteria Statement Form

Check all that apply:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Individually eligible             FORMCHECKBOX 
   Eligible only in a historic district
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Contributing to a potential historic district          FORMCHECKBOX 
  Potential historic district
Criteria:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A        FORMCHECKBOX 
    B        FORMCHECKBOX 
    C     FORMCHECKBOX 
    D

Criteria Considerations:       FORMCHECKBOX 
   A      FORMCHECKBOX 
    B      FORMCHECKBOX 
   C     FORMCHECKBOX 
   D      FORMCHECKBOX 
    E      FORMCHECKBOX 
    F       FORMCHECKBOX 
    G

                   Statement of Significance by________Neil Larson_________________________________

                            The criteria that are checked in the above sections must be justified here.
The Osgood – Hurd House is an example of a two-story double-family dwelling that appears to date from the early 19th century.  This being the case, it would have been moved to its present location ca. 1880.  The building is a contributing component of the village district.     
� Stephen Osgood to Horace E. Harriman, 1 November 1890, SED 1294:336.


� Horace E. Harriman to Thomas Hurd, 7 November 1916, SED 2349:345.


� Spaulding and Thomas Hurd are shown in a photograph taken in front of Spaulding’s antique shop in the Phenix Block in 1909 in Anthony Mitchell Sammarco, Images of America: Georgetown (Portsmouth, NH: Arcadia Publishing, 2002), 80.


� Thomas Hurd to George H. Hurd and Robert F. Metcalf, 8 November 1916, SED 2349:348; Thomas Hurd and Thomas Hurd Jr., Haverhill, to Ruth Poole, 3 December 1959, SED 4625:112; Ruth Poole to Thomas and Cassandra May Hurd, 3 December 1959, SED 4625:114; Thomas Hurd Jr., Iona T. Hurd, Edna P. Driscoll, and Alfred E. Hurd, all Georgetown; Florence C. Harrignton, Ipswich; Forrest Hurd, aka Burton Newton, Columbus OH; and Marjorie E. Pitkin, NC, to Marjorie E. Pitkin, 5 September 1968, SED 5563:795; James N. and Jean A. Tolman to Frank J. Scearbo Jr. and Deborah L. Scearbo, 17 Clark Street, 25 April 2002, SED 18628:105.
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